MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL CITY OF GARFIELD HEIGHTS, OHIO

Monday, March 8, 2021

(Note: This meeting was conducted via Zoom due to the current Covid-19 outbreak.)

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 7:08 p.m. by Council President Michael Nenadovich.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Welcome, everybody to the Council meeting. We're a little bit late on the Caucus meeting, but we had some good questions. I hope I didn't come across too strong but, again, I'm trying to get the meeting over and done with and I do wish that everybody be heard. But, you know, a lot of people disagree with the way things go. Anyway, I would like to call to order the Council meeting of March 8, 2021 at 7:08 p.m. Barb, would you take the roll call.

ROLL CALL: PRESENT: Council Members Dudley, Donahue, Nenadovich, Davis, Blake,

Tagliarini, Vaughn

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Council members. Meeting stares with 7 Yes votes. Getting on to tonight's business. Before we go to the reading and disposal of minutes, I would like to make a motion to add to the agenda the election of Council President Pro Tem. I would like to place that right after the Mayor's report. Do I get a second on that motion?

CLMN DONAHUE: I'll second it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you. Mr. Donahue. Barb, would you take the roll call starting with

myself.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Thank you, Barbara. That's a 7-0 passes.

READING AND DISPOSAL OF MINUTES:

We need to dispose of the minutes for the February 22, 2021, meeting, which was a Monday, as written. Do I hear a second on that?

CLMN VAUGHN: I'll second it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Tom. On the motion to accept the minutes of the Regular Council meeting on February 22, 2021. Barb, would you take a roll call starting with myself? AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue Thank you, Barb. The minutes stand as read and pass 7-0.

Special Council meeting. Legislative meeting. Well, that's two different meetings. That goes there.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Barb, I know we have three pieces of communication. Do you know who they're from at least?

CLERK: Yes. One is from Ms. Renae Bolton. One is from Mrs. Melissia Leonard and one is from Ms. Lanene Jones.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK, I thank you very much for that, Barb.

CLERK: You're welcome.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Like I said before, Council, this is our meeting. Do you want all three of them read? Like I said, I have a plan to run it at the 18th meeting. The one from Ms. Jones. The other two, let me know how you're feeling. All three? I'll start with Mr. Dudley. The Council communications-do you want all three of them read? Or do we want to postpone Ms. Jones's till the 18th meeting?

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: Sorry, Mike. Point of Order. Sorry to interrupt. There has to be a motion. It's not just a question. It's got to be an actual motion.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you. I will make the motion to Council. Do we want to read all three pieces? Or do we want to leave the one for Ms. Jones, as I had discussed in Council to the meeting of the 18th? I put that on the floor. May I get a second?

CLMN TAGLIARINI: I'll second it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Frank.

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: Point of Order. It's got to be a motion for a Yes or No vote.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Then I will rephrase my motion. I would like to make a motion. Do you want all three letters read at tonight's meeting? Could I get a second?

CLMN TAGLIARINI: I will second.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. Thank you. Barb, would you take a roll starting with me.

AYES: Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

NAYS: Nenadovich

The democratic process takes over. Six Yes votes to read all three pieces of communication. Barb, start off with Ms. Lanene Jones, she seems to be the longest letter.

CLERK: All right. Just give me a second to get it in front of me here. This is a letter from Ms. Lanene Jones, 13204 Eastwood Boulevard, dated March 7, 2021.

"Council,

On January 27, 2021, I was notified that the City of Garfield would be looking to appoint a replacement for the Ward 6 Council seat. I submitted my letter of intent to the Clerk on January 28, 2021 and received confirmation of receipt on January 29, 2021. I provided a short bio, which included my current occupation with the Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). At that time, I was under the impression that I qualified for the appointment. Apparently, that was not the case because Section 9 of the Charter specifically states "Members of Council shall not hold any other public office or public employment except as otherwise provided in this Charter, and that of

Notary Public or member of the State Militia or the Reserve Corps of the United States, and shall not be interested in the profits or emoluments of any contract job, work or service of the Municipality." My interpretation of that portion of the Charter was that you could be employed by a public entity if there was no conflict of interest and it was noted as such in my letter of intent.

On February 19, 2021, I had an interview with Council for the appointment. No one on Council informed me that I did not qualify for the position during the interview, nor did anyone ask me any questions relating to my current occupation with the VA. I was notified that I did not qualify for the appointment as a courtesy by Councilman Dudley an hour and $\frac{1}{2}$ before the Council meeting on February 22, 2021, when Council would be nominating and voting on the Ward 6 seat appointment. I am very disappointed in the process and would have appreciated someone taking the time to review my letter of intent and reaching out to me prior to an hour and $\frac{1}{2}$ before the vote. It was unprofessional and unorganized, and I would have appreciated you all providing me with the dignity of letting me know upfront that I did not qualify instead of taking me through the entire interview process unnecessarily. Never in my life have I been invited to interview for a position for which I did not qualify.

Nonetheless, I am resilient enough to withstand a couple of bumps and bruises and public humiliation. The bigger issue that needs to be addressed is the Charter. I want to thank Jeff Jerome in the Law Department for researching and providing me with a copy of the original Charter from 1956. The previously quoted verbiage has not been altered or amended since 1956. I am not sure which residents the original Charter sought to exclude, but today is a new day; one of inclusion. Section 9 of the Charter not only excludes me from serving on Council, but all employees of the VA, including but not limited to: doctors, nurses, office staff, janitors, and electricians. Employees of the Social Security Administration, Defense, and agencies such as FBI or CIA would be excluded. The Charter excludes RTA bus drivers, Librarians, Community College staff - from Professors to mailroom clerks. It would exclude all US Postal employees, and anyone that is employed by the Water Department. It would exclude Public Defenders and members of ODOT. Any Federal, State, or City employee would be excluded. All employees of organizations receiving public funds to operate would be excluded. The number of occupations excluded from this Charter is too broad and too wide to be considered ethically, socially, and morally correct.

I implore you to repeal this section of the Charter because it does not reflect a spirit of inclusion. It is not reflective of what we want for the City of Garfield and it does not account for the many occupations of the residents of Garfield Heights that desire to serve the City. I must note that shortly after my interview, Councilwoman Davis and Councilman Dudley reached out to me concerning the Charter issue and apologized for the confusion. They vowed to revisit Section 9 of the Charter in the near future. I pray that moving forward, all of Council takes a closer look at our Charter to see if it reflects what we aspire to see in Garfield's future. We discussed checks and balances in my interview. Council must act as checks and balances for the Charter Review Board as well. This is not a case of "if it's not broken, don't fix it." This is clearly broken and it's time we fixed it.

Humbly, Lanene Jones"

CLERK: That's the end.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Barbara. I appreciate it. I was following you on the email that she did send. Okay, do you have your next piece of correspondence?

CLERK: Which one do you want next? Mrs. Leonard or Ms. Jones?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: We'll go with Ms. Bolton.

CLERK: Getting a drink of water. Do you want Ms. Bolton next or? I'm sorry, I didn't hear anything.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Ms. Bolton, please.

CLERK: Ms. Bolton next. All right. This is a letter from Renae Bolton, 5749 Turney Road, dated March 3, 2021.

"To Our Council Members and Mayor Burke:

I was recently reviewing the new City of Garfield Heights website and was appalled when I came across the Court Community Service page. This webpage is perpetuating the stereotype that only people of color in this community make poor choices that land them in the judicial system. The huge picture of people of color performing community service is racially biased, to say the least. Did these people even consent to have their faces on the website in this manner? I cannot adequately express how disgusted I was to see this picture on the website. THIS is what gives the racists of this world the confidence to express on a City Council meeting that black children need to be raised better. THIS is what makes people think that the things they have been raised to believe are correct – because look! It's on the city website. This type of media exposure is what perpetuates racism and negative views of people of color.

I respectfully request that the city take immediate steps to remove this picture.

I would also like to address the current flurry of activity revolving around the Mayor appointing people of color to several committees in the city. I previously requested the full list of committees in the city and how residents can hold a seat. This request was made on February 23rd and I have not received this information as of the date of this correspondence. Additionally, optics give the impression that the Mayor is now trying to ensure that there are people of color on these committees prior to sending out the list. It is also interesting to me that there are multiple committees with vacant seats that are now being filled. How long have these seats been vacant? What other seats are also vacant? Why have the vacant seats not been posted for the community to get involved on them? When residents talk about transparency, this is a prime example of what we mean. Instead of allowing residents to get involved, we have yet another perpetuation of handpicking people who the Mayor wants on these committees - new Mayor, same story. I would like to know why these committees are not posted somewhere on the website and why our leadership insists on handpicking members for these committees.

I'm deeply disappointed in how this year has begun and implore all of you to do better. How long do we have to keep having the same conversations before something changes? The definition of insanity is when you keep doing the same thing but expect a different result. This is most definitely insane."

CLERK: And that's the end of that letter.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I thank you and I believe you may or may want to dress that in his report. I would also like now to go to Mrs. Leonard's letter. If you would please read that, Barbara.

CLERK: This is a letter from Mrs. Melissia Leonard, 4893 East 84th Street, and it's dated March 3, 2021.

"Dear members of council and Mayor Burke,

First, I am very happy to hear the police department has welcomed three new officers. I would like to welcome them to our community and pray for their safety.

After a near accident with the sewer drain, I contacted the service department about the safety issue. I was very impressed by their quick response. They came out immediately and worked on repairing the damaged sewer catch basin. Thank you to the service department for your attention, concern, and repair.

After witnessing continued injustices within our community, I realize we can no longer be silent. We need full transparency and sometimes, the truth hurts. This is not meant as a personal attack. This is meant to draw awareness to the issues that we all should be addressing in our city.

With that being said, I am appalled at the lack of cultural awareness that continues to happen within the city leadership. I understand that city leaders have identified one of the incoming police officers as Muslim. I find it odd that the officer's religious beliefs were pointed out as an important qualification for the job. I wonder if all candidates' religious beliefs were questioned. This appears discriminatory. The other option would be to assume that the leadership misspoke and meant to indicate the officer emigrated from Morocco, clearly two different categories. This presumption might seem insignificant to some, but this can be offensive. For example, referencing a person of Asian descent as a Buddhist would be presumptive and offensive if they were Christian. Our leadership needs to do better.

Recently, Councilman Dudley hosted a phenomenal Black History program. The speaker was inspiring and spoke from his heart about his experiences with Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. and his own life experiences. It was wonderful to also see Inez Killingsworth recognized for her years of advocacy for housing rights, community engagement, and financial wellness. Despite the positive impact of the program, I was immensely astounded by the comments from Mayor Burke as he spoke about his experience of eating polish boys and visiting a black owned restaurant. His comments overshadowed the pain and suffering that has occurred in the black community. These comments appeared to create a false connection to the black community. Cultural appropriation occurs when a person from a dominant culture tries to adopt elements of another disadvantaged culture. This is a prime example of why leadership, from the Mayor throughout the ranks of city leadership needs cultural sensitivity training, cultural awareness, and an overall cultural competence.

My intention is not to single out Mayor Burke because there are several other examples that continue to occur within the city leadership despite increased communications and awareness about the importance of being culturally sensitive. My biggest question is this: what is the status of the cultural diversity/equity training that was to be scheduled by the city human resource department? If the training has occurred, clearly, city employees need more training. To take it one step further, what is being done to hold people accountable for continued issues with a lack of cultural sensitivity?

Many members of our community agree that the city leadership has every intention to shut down our voices. To accomplish this, people are often attacked, belittled, or concerns are not addressed at city council meetings. For example, at the last city council meeting a citizen attempted to bring up the issue of allowing residents to raise chickens. She was immediately shut down and told that the issue had already been addressed before and it would not be addressed again. Thankfully, the result was a willingness to move the issue to the legislative committee, but it was clear from that exchange that the city is against even the most minor change and discussion. If we cannot even discuss the issues affecting our community, how can we make any significant positive change? The issues in our community are deep rooted. The most important factor in addressing this issue is being willing to have a discussion, actively listening, and being open to community involvement. Many times, I have heard city council complain that no one gets involved or no one shows up to meetings; however, when people do show up or are involved,

they are shut down, singled out, and often feel unheard. This needs to change from the top down. If our leadership is not willing to listen, then the leadership needs to change.

Finally, I am deeply concerned about how the Ward 6 council seat appointment was handled. The meetings that lead up to the interviews and voting were disorganized to say the least. Not only was there a lack of willingness to accept technological help from Councilwoman Shayla Davis, but there was also a lot of aggressive and demeaning communication. I understand Ms. Davis went to great lengths to suggest the most effective and organized structure for the appointment process; however, her suggestions were often overlooked, dismissed, or adopted as someone else's ideas. In addition to the overall poor organization, clearly, favoritism and cronyism prevailed without regard for what the citizens requested. On several occasions, Mr. Nenadovich pointed out that Renae Bolton received numerous letters of recommendation; yet she was not appointed. I have nothing against Mr. Tagliarini and wish him the best in his new role; however, this is just another example of how the leadership dealings in our city need a complete transformation. I have no doubt, come election; the citizens' voices will be heard.

There has been no mention of extending the Community Relations Committee application deadline during the city council meetings. What is the status of the extension? To increase the number of applicants, please work on posting the opportunity on the city website. Clearly, the website can be updated when certain people feel it is warranted. During numerous meetings, it was discussed that the application would be available online, along with a list of requirements; however, I have yet to see anything posted on the city website indicating such. How can people get involved if the city is so disorganized? They cannot. What is the response? Blame it on the people for not being involved. This pattern needs to change.

I support changes to the City Charter allowing city council members to hold public employment while on City Council. Many successful cities allow members to hold public employment. Public employment should not automatically be a barrier to holding office. How can community members get involved in making this charter change?

What is the outcome of the discussion of reducing the number of judges to one? Are the crime rates still decreasing?

In closing, city leadership response to these concerns comes from a place of fear, privilege, biases, control, and a lack of knowledge. Our desire is to advocate for positive outcomes in our community. Our hope is that people will be teachable and open. Our passion and motivation come from years of inequity, disrespect, and concerns falling on deaf ears. Our mistrust comes from a lack of transparency. Our voices come out of a love for our community. Our frustration comes from a lack of response and attempted oppression. We love our community and want to see improvements.

There will be a lot of changes coming down the road for our city, including city leadership. Our community will hold people accountable for their role and actions. We will not be silenced."

CLERK: And that is the end of the letter.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you very much, Barb. Any other communications?

CLERK: No.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you very much. OK. We will continue on. The letters have been read.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: We will now go to Council Committee reports. Jason, I believe you have a committee report?

CLMN BLAKE: I'd like to make a motion to give the floor to Ms. Millette King of the Garfield Heights City School District for her report.

CLMN VAUGHN: I will second that.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Barb, would you take a roll call starting with Mr. Blake.

AYES: Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue, Nenadovich, Davis

That motion passes 7-0. Ms. King, you have the floor.

Ms. King: Thank you. Good evening to everyone. Garfield Heights City School District wants to welcome our newest Board member, Heather Morrison. Heather was sworn in on February 8th. She was appointed to fill the vacancy left from the resignation of Christine Kitson.

All teachers and staff have had the opportunity to receive their two COVID vaccinations if they chose to receive them.

The district began their hybrid return to school model today. It was a pleasure having the opportunity to greet students and staff this morning as they returned to the school buildings. For more information on the hybrid model, please see the district's Website.

Our next school board meeting will be held Monday, March 15^{th} at 6:00 p.m. and you can view the meeting via our YouTube channel.

Thank you. That ends my report.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Could you send out an email for the Zoom that you're going to be going on? That's so all of Council can get that.

MS. KING: So the Zoom is just for the school board members. We live stream it to our YouTube channel, so everyone can view it via the YouTube channel. If you have questions, you email those questions to us and then we will read those live at our meeting.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Ms. King.

MS. KING: You're welcome.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Anything else?

MS. KING: No, sir.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. Are there any questions for Ms. King? Any other committee reports? I have one. We are still going to have our meeting on Section 9 of the Charter and the chicken ordinance for having farm animals on the 18th of March, which is a Thursday, and it'll be at 6:30 p.m. That's my committee report.

So if no other committee chairmen have anything, we will move on to reports of the Mayor and Directors. Mayor Burke, you have the floor.

REPORT OF THE MAYOR:

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Thank you, Mr. President. First, I'd like to respond to the letters that were read just recently here.

I first want to say to Ms. Bolton, in regards to the Court Community Service page, that page is not a page that is part of our city's Website; it is a link to the Cuyahoga County Court Community Service page. I did talk to Pat Salemi and she is going to reach out to them about possibly changing that picture that is offensive. So hopefully she can get that done but that is really not part of our city Webpage. And while I'm on the Web page, I will say that our Webpage is under construction, we are constantly trying to make it better. It is nowhere near being where I want it yet, nowhere near being where others in the administration here want it. But we are working on it. Part of it is we're short staffed; we just don't have the money to do it. And then some other things that are happening in the city, that the two people that handle our Website, have more importance, such as making sure the fire and police have adequate communication.

As far as the committees that you mentioned, the committees that need appointments, almost every one of them timed out or termed out as of December 31, 2020. Mayor Collova was pretty strong willed about not appointing anybody, and leaving it up to me to a point. As a matter of fact, I'd been talking about appointing some of the members as early as February 1st when I took office, however, because there's a few vacancies. I just last week talked to Tim Riley and Jeff Jerome about posting these committees, so that people can actually see what they're all about and express interest.

As far as my recent appointment, I spoke to Mr. Kelley. He had expressed interest in wanting to be more involved in the city and we spoke specifically about a few committees. That was the one that we had agreed on. So that's why I appointed him. It had nothing to do with his heritage. It had everything to do with him being interested in the position and serving on the committee. He is a fine, fine individual, who I find to be very easy to speak to, very level headed and very much a pillar in this particular community. Also, because I was the representative of Ward 6, I knew Mr. Kelley from that and I have always thought highly of him. So hopefully that addresses those issues.

In regards to the letter by Mrs. Leonard talking about the cultural diversity, equity training, that training is still being put into effect. We are not quite there yet. We just got the material, I believe a few weeks ago back in January, I believe it was or end of December when that was passed. So we had to get that information in. I will tell you that I have been in contact through Janice Tubbs with Dr. Adrian Fletcher from Case Western Reserve in regards to having her come in and talk about the cultural diversity training here at the Civic Center and to the city employees, Dr. Fletcher is a diversity expert. She is the Dean of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion for Case Western Reserve. I don't believe that we're going to get anybody in this area that's going to be better qualified than to have her come and speak. On numerous Zoom calls here in regards to that we hope to be able to make that happen here within the next few months, depending on the schedule.

Also, in regards to the one Judge Court. The one Judge court is pretty much dead in the water, I think. When we reviewed the numbers, all the preliminary reports show that we're down in cases, mostly due to COVID-19. Specifically, the traffic offenses, because as you know, police officers, they're in the front line at this thing and I believe when they pull people over, they're worried about their own safety when it comes to COVID-19. That's where we've seen a lot of traffic violations, now. We believe that once the vaccine is put into effect, and everybody gets back out, comes out, those cases will probably go back up. So there's no need to go to a one Judge Court.

I really do want to say and, Ms. Jones, I want to say to you that in regards to the Chapter 9 of the Charter, I know that it's been talked about previously. It was talked about when I was a Councilperson. I personally, this is just my personal feelings. I personally don't have a problem, as long as it's not a direct conflict of interest with City. In other words, you can't work for the city and be the Councilperson in that city; I think that would be a conflict of interest. As far as being part of the TSA, being part of Homeland

Security, being part of the United States military, I would say that, you know, that is something that would not be a conflict of interest. So that's just where I feel on that. Hopefully, that can be put on the ballot and voters can decide that because I believe that's how the procedure is formed for that particular thing.

I really do want to say I appreciate the letters, I appreciate any kind of criticism of me. As you know, I've only been doing this about a month and a week or so. I will be the first one to tell you, this is not an easy job. I feel a lot of times we were judged on a lot of things that we do or we say, but I just want to let everybody know I appreciate the letters. I appreciate the criticism; I'm trying my best to do the right thing. All I can do is put my best foot forward and try my best. If the voters vote for me, they vote for me. Hopefully that'll be the case. If they don't vote for me and they decide to bring somebody else in. Well, I guess I'll be looking for a job. But all I can do and all I can control is to try my very best to treat people with dignity and do the best that I can. Will I have my moments probably, you know, I don't set out to try to disrespect anybody. I just try to do the right thing.

I want to congratulate school board member Heather Morrison on her appointment. I also want to congratulate Mr. Frank Tagliarini and his appointment to Ward 6. I will tell you, I know how hard of a job that is, and how involved we are in Ward 6. So I'm sure you'll be getting the phone calls and certainly anybody that calls me, I'll send them your way, Frank. I'm just joking. Everybody knows that. Everybody knows that I will handle it or help to handle it.

Community Relations Committee. I wanted to talk about that real quick, because I had 10 applicants actually got one in today and I know they're late, but I went ahead and I'm going to set up an appointment with them as well. My assistant, Jen Duber, is in the process of setting up the interviews for next week, Monday, Tuesday or Wednesday. We added a third day because, as you know, the schedule here gets pretty busy. So we will sit down, we'll interview the applicants. I'll make my appointments and then Council can confirm those people. I promise you I will be as transparent about it as I can be, but during the actual interview process, every applicant is going to get asked the same questions. We'll develop a response to those questions. I will make the interviews known to Council and they can review them and hopefully approve who we select here on my end.

In Caucus you guys were talking about Council packets. I don't care how you guys want it, I'll try to make it happen. If you want it sent to your houses, through the Police Department, the way it used to be, we can make that happen. We can try to make it happen here at the Civic Center and we can try to have them at the police station. I think I'm in agreement with our Law Director, Tim Riley, that you want to have them someplace where you can pick them up and have access to that place 24 hours a day, seven days a week. If you don't pick up the packet by Thursday, you forget to pick it up Friday. The next thing, you know, Saturday, the building is closed, and you can't come in and get your packet. I think that there should be some way to come to some kind of terms on this. Either way, we will make sure those packets are emailed to you as they've been going.

I want to talk a little bit about the Council Work Session that I called for this Wednesday. Ms. Davis cannot make it. What I would like to do is find out. Do we schedule it for Thursday? Are we postponing it another week? I would just like to know, if you guys want to get a hold of me via email, let me know. I just want to get it scheduled so that we can all be on the same page. That's the one to talk about the trashcans and violators that don't take their trashcans back in and out.

Every Saturday morning, I have been doing a "Zoom Coffee with the Mayor" from 10 o'clock in the morning to 11 o'clock in the morning on Saturday mornings. I make myself available and I talk about what we've been working on all week. I also have residents that will ask questions during these sessions. I will tell you, I believe them to be very informative, especially on my end. As long as the residents are out there, I will commit to keep doing it as long as people are involved. Certainly I don't want to be having "Zoom Coffee with the Mayor" and be the only one on. So, but I do appreciate everybody. We had

a great conversation this last Saturday, about what people can do in the community to help--you know-stuff like pick up the trash and, and make sure that we're helping the needy and there was just so many things that came out this last week. I just feel inspired to have to talk about it at my report.

I also started a "Zoom with the Seniors" every Wednesday and I got to tell you, it's been very well received. A lot of the Seniors have not seen anybody or heard from anybody for almost a year now. You know, we've been in the COVID for a year. I felt is very important that we touched base with Seniors. We had a great crew of people from Jennings Hall. We're hoping to have Marymount Place and St. Tim's on board this coming week. So hopefully we'll get something going there. It gives them something to do. It gives them something to talk about and have conversations about whatever they want to talk about. So that's something that I feel strongly about doing, just to keep up with the Seniors and make sure that they're OK. We continue to deliver meals to them. We continue to help them if they need transportation to doctor's appointments and so on but I feel like we have to have more interaction with Seniors and that's what we're doing.

Let me talk a little bit about M Pack Switchback. By now you've heard of Switchback AR, a company that manufactures craft beer for the craft beer industry. They were purchased last year by a company called M Pack out of Great Britain. They're coming to Garfield Heights and making Garfield Heights their corporate headquarters. They're bringing with them a \$3 million payroll with a tax incentive and growth incentive to hit \$5 million by the time they're five years from now. They feel if they can hit that as an entity now, Switchback will actually they actually now manufacture cereal boxes, bottles, your craft beer containers, they are into a lot of different things that we touch and see every day. I'm very proud to announce that they're coming here. This is something that Mayor Collova and I have been working on since probably the beginning of November. I'm happy to see that they've signed their lease. They're taking over 60,000 square feet of the old Wal-Mart location, right there at Highland Park (obviously known as City View shopping center).

We haven't stopped there. We are in negotiations with another company for the same center over there that is going to probably be about the same size, if not a little bit bigger than Switchback. They have not signed their lease and I've given my word that I would not release who they are. Because a lot of the developers don't want other developers trying to steal their tenants.

And I do want to announce that Noreen Kuban and I have been in negotiations with another business. It looks like they are coming. And they're scheduled to close on a building they're buying here in Garfield Heights, either today or tomorrow. I haven't heard much from them but this is a \$1.5 million dollar payroll. They're a construction firm. And they also are going to sublease some of the building that they're purchasing. All good news for the city of Garfield Heights. I think that that's something we're on the up and up. Hopefully we can keep the momentum going.

Let me get into tonight's legislation real quick. Ordinance number 21-2021. That is just a renewal of the Juvenile Diversion Program. That is something that we've been doing for years. I think it's a good program for the community and for the juveniles. Ordinance number 22-2021 is basically to address the retaining wall over there on East 131st Street and North Parkway, which is in desperate need of repair. That is something that's definitely needed over there. Ordinance number 23-2021 is to purchase 10 Motorola portable radios. This is something that is needed to get us updated here in the city for our safety forces. Ordinances 24, 25 and 26. All are dealing with the Granger Road, I-480 Interchange. 24 is to really set up a funding mechanism. So if the project does go through the city of Garfield Heights, we'll be able to administer the funding for it. It will act as the catalyst the funding goes through. Ordinance number 25 is really to contract with OHM Engineers and Advisors to come up with a preliminary plan to see exactly how it will be done. Ordinance number 26 is to create and establish the Interchange Improvement Fund so that we can administer those funds. I will tell you that being a resident in that area, I've been given their word from the President of Marymount that there will be a series of public meetings in the event that a particular project is underway.

Resolution number 11 is appointing Clifford Kelley to the Recreation Board of the city of Garfield Heights. Just so you know, I did have a conversation with Mr. Kelley. He's excited about this. I'm excited for him. I also want to remind Council that there are two members the Council needs to appoint for this position as well for this board as well. One of them needs to be a Board of Education employee. And then Resolution number 12-2021 is a resolution on commending Reverend Dr. Charles Payne that's introduced by Clwn Shayla Davis. I'm sure she'll want to talk about that when the legislation comes up.

With that, you have my report.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Mayor. Are there any questions for the Mayor on his report? Comments or questions? Clwn Davis, please.

CLWN DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mayor Burke, are you able to send me or have your assistant send me the link for your Saturday with the Mayor and also the Senior event. I can't remember the day that you said. I did see that someone had it floating around on social media, but I would like to send it out in an email blast to my Seniors and let other residents in the Ward know the meeting on Saturday is happening.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Absolutely. I'll have Jen send it to you. I'm putting it on the City Website as well.

CLWN DAVIS: Thank you very much.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Thank you.

CLWN DAVIS: That's all, Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Anybody else? Are there any of the Directors that have a report or wish to speak at this time? The Chiefs?

PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR BIRK: I just wanted to let everybody know that with the COVID last year there were no events. However, I am bringing back t-ball this year. Co-ed softball was here a few years back. I would really like to try to re-implement that as well. Signups for both will begin April 1st.

I also wanted to remind everybody about the ice show the 27th. Unfortunately, as far as in person, it is just for the dignitaries of the city. It will be live streamed, however, on the 27th, which is a Saturday.

I just wanted to report that, over the last four months--from November to February—the ice rink has brought in a good you know, \$17,500.00 a month as far as revenue goes. For the city, it's been pretty busy owing to other rinks being shut down or whatnot. We actually locked in a couple of new tenants as far as that goes for next year, as well.

That is my report.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Any questions for Mr. Birk on his report? There being none. I do have a question. Is Service Director Mark Sikon available? I guess not. OK. I'll make a phone call to you. Any of the Chiefs or anybody else wish to speak? If not, we'll move on.

At this time, we made a motion to have the election for Council President Pro Tem, at this time in the meeting, just before Communications by Citizens and after the Mayor's report and Directors' reports. Mr. Riley, I believe I have to make a motion to hold the election and name the candidates that are available.

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: You will have to make a motion to open the floor for nominations.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you. I would like to make a motion to open the floor for nominations for Council President Pro Tem. Do I have a second on that?

CLMN DONAHUE: I'll second it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Chuck. On the motion starting with me, Barb, take a roll.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion passes 7-0.

CLMN VAUGHN: Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Vaughn.

CLMN VAUGHN: I would like to nominate Clmn Michael Dudley of Ward 1 as Council President Pro Tem.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. That's a nomination. Are there any other nominations? I would like to nominate the Clmn from Ward 7 Tom Vaughn for Council President Pro Tem. Are there any other nominations?

CLMN VAUGHN: Mr. Chairman?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Yes.

CLMN VAUGHN: At this time, I cannot take that position.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you very much, Mr. Vaughn. If there are no other nominations, nominations are closed. Seeing as how Mr. Dudley is the only candidate of the two that is available to run for Council President Pro Tem, I don't believe we need to have an Aye on it, but I'm going to make a motion that we take a floor vote even though he is the only one. We will make it official. So I make a motion to vote Yea or Nay on Mr. Dudley. Do I have a second?

CLMN DONAHUE: I'll second that.

CLMN VAUGHN: Before I vote, I would like to say Clmn Dudley has served his Ward well since 2007. For 16 years, he has had a well-organized and enjoyable Black History Month program and celebrations. For years, he has sponsored many meals and services for the residents of St. Timothy Manor. With that being said, I support Michael Dudley for Council President Pro Tem and I vote Yes.

CLMN DUDLEY: Before I vote, I want to thank Tom for the nomination. And I really want to thank all my Council colleagues, I do appreciate this. And I really thank y'all I think you all do for this to finish it out this term. And with that, I vote yes And thank you all once again, all of you.

CLMN DONAHUE: Before I vote, Mike, it's a long time coming. I vote yes.

CLMN DUDLEY: Thank you.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Barbara. That passes 7-0. Mr. Dudley. Congratulations.

CLMN DUDLEY: Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Next, we have Communications from Citizens on the Agenda for tonight. Only on the agenda. Barb, would you read the rules for the Council of citizens' communications.

COMMENTS BY CITIZENS ON THE AGENDA:

CLERK: Comments shall be strictly limited to brief statements not to exceed five minutes with comments limited to legislation on the current evening's agenda. No citizen shall speak more than once.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Are there any citizens tonight wishing to speak on the agenda before Council? If there be none, we will get into ordinances and resolutions.

CLMN BLAKE: Mr. Kelley is looking to make a comment.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Kelley, go ahead, please. You have the floor.

Mr. Kelley: I want to thank you for the opportunity to speak. I heard the letters and the comments made in regards to the Mayor's appointment.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Kelley, this is just on the agenda. You will have a chance to speak on Comments by Citizens at the end of the meeting. OK?

MR. KELLEY: All right. OK. I'm sorry. I thought that's where we were.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: No problem, Sir. Happens all the time.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Mr. President, I believe Mr. Kelley was talking about Resolution Number 11-2021, which is on tonight.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK, if that's the case, I didn't catch that. If it's Resolution 11, no problem. Mr. Kelley. You have the floor.

MR. KELLEY, 12312 Eastwood Blvd.: I just wanted to say thank you for that appointment, but stop me if my comment is bleeding into what is comments for citizens. I'm concerned that the thought process on this appointment was a token pick. The reason why I bring that up is because of what maybe I gauged it wrong, but the tone of that letter. I have been a boots on the ground person all my life. I've always tried to be involved in everything that affected me directly so I didn't wait to see what I could get involved in. I didn't try and wait to see what's going to happen in November, whatever. I immediately contacted Council. If they feel like disclosing who they are, they can, but I contacted Council, hey, what's going on in the city? What can I be involved in? Then I immediately contacted the Mayor, I contacted him. I didn't wait to find out what was going on. I went and I tracked him down and then he called me back. He's being generous by saying that he called me but I tracked him down. So I just want to make sure that it's understood that I didn't wait for an opportunity. I looked to see what I could do. So, again, I thank the Mayor for the appointment and I look forward to working with the citizens of Garfield. That is all. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: This is Mayor Burke.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Burke, go ahead.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: I just want to follow up Mr. Kelley's comments that he was very proactive in reaching out to me in regards to being on the committee and we discussed at great detail what the committee entailed. I was pretty impressed with what he had to say. So he was proactive

about it. It wasn't that I sought him. He actually sought me. So I just want to put that for the record. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Very good. Mr. Mayor. Thank you. Who am I speaking to Mr. Blake? Go ahead.

CLMN BLAKE: Lawrence Lane has a hand up.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Lane, go ahead.

Mr. Lane. I'm sorry. I was going to wait to afterwards. I already have my hand up a little too fast here. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Okay. Thank you.

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:

Anybody else wishing to comment on what's on tonight's agenda? If there being none, we will move on to ordinances and resolutions. We will start off with Ordinance 21-2021. Barb, would you read the title?

ORDINANCE NO. 21-2021

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO RENEW AN AGREEMENT WITH CUYAHOGA COUNTY AND CUYAHOGA COUNTY JUVENILE COURT TO CONTINUE PARTICIPATING IN THE CUYAHOGA COUNTY COMMUNITY DIVERSION PROGRAM

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to WAIVE RULE 24:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue **PRESIDENT NENADOVICH:** Ordinance 21-2021 passes with 7 Yes votes.

ORDINANCE NO. 22-2021

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR, OR HIS DESIGNEE, TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH VALLEY VIEW CEMENT CONTRACTORS, INC. FOR THE PURPOSE OF REMOVING AND REBUILDING A RETAINING WALL LOCATED AT E. 131st STREET AND NORTH PARKWAY Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to WAIVE RULE 24:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

CLMN DUDLEY: Before I vote, I don't know how many people had an opportunity to go up and see that wall. It's deplorable. It's been in bad shape for quite a while and I know we've battled as a city back and forth with Cleveland and the members over there in Ward 2 in Cleveland and basically with the

Council people. I talked to them quite a bit. If you look at it, it just looked like it's tearing apart; some of the bricks came off of it. This is long overdue and it's not a complaint. How it looks now, I'm happy to get it done so we can see what the finished product is. I know that people on Service Court is very happy about this, and I'm glad that we are finally able to do something about it. It's going to make the community a little better. But most of all, it was a big safety issue. With that, I'll vote Yes.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: That passes 7-0.

ORDINANCE NO. 23-2021

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR, OR HIS DESIGNEE, TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH CHAGRIN VALLEY DISPATCH FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING TEN (10) MOTOROLA PORTABLE APX6000XE RADIOS TO BE USED BY THE GARFIELD HEIGHTS FIRE DEPARTMENT

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to WAIVE RULE 24:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue **PRESIDENT NENADOVICH:** Ordinance 23-2021 passes with 7 Yes votes.

ORDINANCE NO. 24-2021

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MARYMOUNT HOSPITAL INCE. TO PROVIDE A FUNDING MECHANISM FOR THE INITIAL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE I-480 / GRANGER ROAD INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to WAIVE RULE 24:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

CLWN DAVIS: Before I vote, I'd just like to say on the record again, although Mayor Burke has mentioned it, and we have had a lengthy discussion during Caucus, I just want to ensure where this project moves forward, that the residents are involved because this is going to jeopardize their property and create eminent domain, that we do them properly an give them the opportunity to be involved in this. With that, I vote Yes.

CLMN DUDLEY: Before I vote, Mr. Chairman, I will have to recuse myself with the vote because I serve as a trustee on Cleveland Clinic's Marymount Hospital, so I will have to recuse myself from voting.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. Duly noted.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSED: Dudley

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Ordinance 24-2021. We have 6 Yes votes and 1 Recused due to conflict of interest. Thank you.

ORDINANCE NO. 25-2021

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH OHM ADVISORS TO PROVIDE PLANNING AND PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FOR THE I-480 / GRANGER ROAD INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: A question before we go any further? If this is involving the I-480 interchange with Marymount, Mr. Dudley, would that have anything to do with you, so you don't get any problems?

CLMN DUDLEY: Mr. Chairman, I might have to recuse myself once again, from that entire project.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I direct the next question to our Law Director. Tim, do I have to retake the vote?

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: If he's going to recuse himself from voting on the ordinance, he should recuse himself from all votes on it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Tim. Barb, we will eliminate Mr. Dudley on the next three votes on this ordinance and he's recusing due to his conflict of interest.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSED: Dudley

Motion to WAIVE RULE 24:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Next, I would like to make a motion to waive the 24-hour rule, starting with myself.

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: Point of Order. You referred to it as the 24-hour rule. It is rule 24.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I'm sorry. Thank you, Tim. I would like to make a motion to waive rule 24 starting with myself.

CLWN DAVIS: I'm sorry. I want to look back at this piece for a second. OK. I vote Yes. I just wanted to make sure it was finances. I vote Yes.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSED: Dudley

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSED: Dudley

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: That passes 6 Yes and 1 Recused due to conflict of interest.

ORDINANCE NO. 26-2021

AN EMERGENCY ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE FINANCE DIRECTOR TO ESTABLISH THE I-480 / GRANGER ROAD INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT FUND, NUMBER 404, WITHIN THE CITY'S BUDGETARY FUND STRUCTURE

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSE: Dudley

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSE: Dudley

Motion to WAIVE RULE 24:

CLWN DAVIS: Mr. Chairman, do we have to do Rule 24 on this because it's not actually about finances. It's for creating a fund but it's not finances.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: It's regarding finance and we don't know the amount right now. But I would like to waive the 24 Hour Rule just to be on the safe side.

CLWN DAVIS: I'm going to abstain.

AYES: Nenadovich, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSE: Dudley ABSTAIN: Davis

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Donahue

RECUSE: Dudley

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: That would pass with 6 Yes votes and one Recused.

RESOLUTION NO. 11-2021

AN EMERGENCY RESOLUTION RATIFYING AN APPOINTMENT BY THE MAYOR OF CLIFFORD KELLEY TO THE RECREATION BOARD OF THE CITY OF GARFIELD HEIGHTS, OHIO, FOR THE TERM EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2026

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I vote Yes and welcome aboard. **CLWN DAVIS:** Before I vote, congratulations, Mr. Kelley. I vote Yes.

CLMN BLAKE: Before I vote, I'd like to congratulate Mr. Kelley. I appreciate your initiative and effort to seek an area where you can help the community. Again, I just would like to congratulate you, Mr. Kelley. Thank you. I vote Yes.

CLMN TAGLIARINI: Before I vote, I would like to congratulate Mr. Kelley and wish him the best of luck. With that, I vote Yes.

CLMN VAUGHN: Mr. Kelley, I think you'll be a great asset to the recreation board. I think you and Mr. Birk will form a great bond and great things will be happening in the recreation department. And with that, I vote Yes.

CLMN DUDLEY: Before I vote, I agree with all my colleagues. Mr. Kelley, you're an excellent fit for that position. I know we've had conversations where we did talk about diversity on the phone. We did talk about activities and like you say, you'd like to see more activities for the kids within the city of Garfield Heights. And just like my colleagues have mentioned, you are the best fit for that job. Congratulations. I wish you the best. Mr. Kelley, welcome aboard to that position. I vote Yes.

CLMN DONAHUE: Before I vote, I'd also like to congratulate Mr. Kelley and I vote Yes.

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you. That passes 7-0. And again, Mr. Kelley, welcome aboard.

RESOLUTION NO. 12-2021

A RESOLUTION COMMEMORATING REVEREND DR. CHARLES PAYNE LUCAS, JR.'S 80^{TH} BIRTHDAY CELEBRATION

Moved by NENADOVICH to CONSIDER BY TITLE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

Motion to SUSPEND THREE READING RULE:

AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

VOTE ON ADOPTION:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Before I vote, Reverend Lucas--80 years is an accomplishment in itself. In today's day and age, people are living longer, but 80 years old and still mobile and getting around and being a Reverend in the community--quite an accomplishment in life. With that, I vote Yes.

CLWN DAVIS: Before I vote, I would like to first thank Mayor Burke for working with me last week to ensure that the Lucas family had a proclamation on behalf of the city. Additionally, you know, we decided to do this resolution on my behalf as Council. I appreciate Council considering this tonight. Mr. Lucas has lived a very full life and is very community driven. He's been the President of the Cleveland NAACP. His son now runs Lucas Memorial Chapel Funeral Home, which is located in Ward 4 in my Ward, and they have been very active in supporting our community and all the events and different things I've done. Lucas has always been a proud and honored supporter of that. So it is with honor that I present this Resolution to Mr. Lucas on behalf of City Council. Thank you. I vote Yes.

CLMN BLAKE: Before I vote, I would like to wish Mr. Lucas a happy birthday. With that, I vote Yes. **CLMN TAGLIARINI:** Before I vote, I would like to wish Mr. Lucas a happy birthday. With that, you have my vote Yes.

CLMN VAUGHN: Before I vote, I want to wish Dr. Charles Payne Lucas, Jr. a very happy 80th birthday and many more. With that, I vote Yes.

CLMN DUDLEY: Before I vote, I also would like to wish the Reverend Dr. Charles Payne Lucas, Jr. a happy 80th birthday. It was always good to see him. I've known them since they arrived in the community. That was many years ago. I can't remember go back beyond 2017, 2061, 2015 I just can't remember exact. But he was always there when he was in the hallway sitting in the hallway he would always greet you. The family has been a strong supporter of programs that I have done, especially the Black History Program. They were a supporter of the Black History Program from day one going back beyond past 2015. They have been great in the community upon their arrival. I know they always been a supporter of ours. They are good family. And like I say that Reverend Charles Payne, he has always greeted you when he was there with a good smile and everything. So once again, at 80 years old, I'm praying today that I'll make it to 80. I'm looking forward to that. We going to wish the young man, a happy birthday and many more to come. With that, I vote Yes.

CLMN DONAHUE: Before I vote, I'd like to wish Reverend Dr. Lucas, a happy birthday. Congratulations to all your accomplishments. This day has brought all that forward in this Resolution. I didn't know you had those accomplishments. It's really great that you've done all that. With that, I vote Yes. AYES: Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini, Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Council. That passes with a unanimous 7-0. Again, happy birthday, Doctor.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS BY CITIZENS:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: That concludes Resolutions and Ordinances for tonight. Next, we will move on to Comments by Citizens. Barb, would you read the rules for Comments by Citizens.

CLERK: Comments shall be restricted to any problem a citizen has which has previously been submitted to his/her Councilperson or to the city hall department directly involved. If submission of a problem to a city hall department or a Councilperson is made and there is a lack of service rendered in this regard, the problem may then be presented during Comments from Citizens at a future meeting. It is the intention of this rule that no request of a first nature is presented on the floor at this time. Comments shall be limited to five minutes. No citizen shall be heard more than once.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Barbara. I will open up the floor. Please speak one at a time. Don't try to cut over anybody. We have a lot of people in our chat tonight. We have 53 participants. That's a very good number. So I will open the floor to comments by citizens.

CLMN BLAKE: Mr. Chairman, Melissia Leonard has her hand up.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mrs. Leonard, please go ahead, you have the floor.

Melissia Leonard, 4893 East 84th Street. Good evening, everyone. I'm going to be brief today. I just have a few things to say. I just first want to thank Barb for reading my long and lengthy letter. I know it was a little long. You know, I was able to express the main points. But I just wanted to bring up one more thing that came up and was also addressed in the letter briefly. And that's just the appointment of some of these different positions. You know, I know that several members have reached out to different community leaders requesting information on some of the committees that are available as far as what committees are available, how does one go about applying for the position or the committee or the board? And to date, I haven't been able to personally find anything on the Website or anywhere listed as to what openings are available to city members. And so, while I congratulate Cliff on his appointment, I'm also still very concerned on how that happened. And if that position was available, and what other candidates applied for that position, if any? I mean, you know, I have no doubt again, that I'm sure he's going to do a great job in that position. But the question is not with him itself. It's with the process. As a community member, we want to be informed about positions that are available and committees and how does one get on a committee? How does one get appointed to a committee? And for prime example, the Community Relations Committee. There was multiple discussions about the committee, how to get involved, how to apply for that position, and yet, we have a position and multiple positions that are opened, you know, for the community, but no one's aware of those positions. So I quess that's my biggest question of the day. Where can we find that information? What are the openings? What are the qualifications and how does one go about applying for some of these openings within the committees and in Council and everything else that's open out there? How is that process being fair and equitable to the community that wants to apply and wants to get involved? So with that, I have nothing else. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mrs. Leonard, if I may make a statement? Earlier in the meeting, you heard Mayor Burke mention that we are going to be upgrading our Website. It is getting better and better all along. Technology, we're finally catching up with it. And I do hope we start posting these openings or positions in the city. Before, all we had was emails, we didn't have Zoom and people did not come to the Council meetings. So I mean, we have 53 people here. We had 62 at one point in the evening. That's more people I've seen touched except for the time we were getting ready to close the Rec Center eight years ago. We had over 200 at the meeting. But with this new technology, the Websites, Web pages, and this Zoom meeting, I mean, I believe we're going to see something coming up in the city where we're finally catching up with the technology and more information will be working out to the citizens. We can only, you know, take it at a time. Our IT man is doing double duty. We're upgrading everything. So please bear with us. And if we're not working fast enough, I expect you and I hope you do continue to ask these questions of us and I appreciate that.

MRS. LEONARD: In the meantime, though, where can we get that information?

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Mr. President, if I could address that?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Please go ahead.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Mrs. Leonard, all of the committees are assigned in our Charter. So if you go to the Council page, you can go to the Codified Ordinances of the Charter. It lists every committee that we have now. Saying that I mean, it's a pretty strenuous process. I certainly applaud Mr. Kelley for, you know, looking into it. However, in speaking with even our Law Director, as soon as but I want to say, last Wednesday or Thursday, I recognize the fact that we have to do some changing. In the past, it's always been to the Mayor's discretion to appoint somebody to a committee, there is no open process to apply as a lot of these committees do or strictly volunteer, much like the Community Relations Committee, we have to think outside the box. I do have them posting every committee on our Website,

exactly what it entails, where to go in the Charter to find that committee. And then we will take an application process or an interest process. But really, it has always been up to the Mayor's discretion.

To be fair, I would like to be fair, and open it up to as many people as I can. And certainly, we are going to try to put it on the Website, however, I will tell you, we'll probably get a lot more attraction, putting it in the Neighborhood News and out on some of the social media platforms that are out there. So bear with me, we're trying, we're doing the best we can. I am working with pretty much limited resources and to be honest with you, I've been pretty busy here in the office since February 1st. So I will try to make that a priority for you and try to get it going as soon as I can.

MRS. LEONARD: I appreciate that. And I completely respect that you want to make it fair. My concern is it wasn't fair with Cliff Kelley. How did he get appointed when no one else knew that the position was available? And I'll leave it at that I'm not going to, you know, I don't want to go back and forth. But that's my point is that that wasn't fair. And there were people before him that were asking about openings, and no information was shared. And so that's the concern. That's the wrong with this situation. It's not Kelley; it's the way that it was handled. And just the hope is that. Yes,

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Your five minutes are coming close. I'll give you a couple seconds to wrap up.

MRS. LEONARD: So that's the main point is it was a wrong? And how do we correct that? I hear everybody saying ways that we can address that and ways that we can correct that. The question is, is that going to be done? Or is it just words? So thank you.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: So it's not just words, because to be honest with you, there was more than one applicant or one person who expressed to me that they were interested in that Rec board and obviously they searched the Charter to find out that that board needed an appointment or they inquired about it. Two of the other individuals I thought were not very qualified for it. So you know, what we're going to try to do is make it a little bit more transparent. Again, you know, I'm doing the best I can try to make it fair, and try to get it out there. So I apologize if you don't feel that way. Again, I'm doing the very best that I can. It's got to be different than it used to be. I'm working on that. So thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Mayor. Who am I speaking to?

CLMN BLAKE: Clmn Blake. Lawrence Lane has his hand up.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Lane, you have your five minutes on the floor. Please state your name and address for the record.

Mr. Lane. My name is Lawrence Lane. My address is 14908 Rockside Road, but I operate a business at 9812 Garfield Boulevard. It's called the Wine Down Bistro.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Are you a resident of Garfield Heights?

MR. LANE: No, I'm not. But one of the reasons that I wanted to make a comment, I just wanted to thank Clmn Dudley for basically supporting me in the Black History Program. That was my original intent. I just really wanted to come there. And just the thing of pretty much all of Garfield for just the support that I've received with different businesses that I've had in Garfield. I used to own the Bask Entertainment Complex and I really don't know that your Chief, the fireman that was involved when I had a fire there but he was really supportive to help me do that.

But one of the things that I did find interesting was a letter that was written dealing with the Mayor coming to my restaurant and buying a Polish boy. I got to say this. We started; we opened up the Wine

Down Bistro back in March of last year. We have struggled to just stay afloat. So I think that his coming into my restaurant, I don't even believe that he knew I was African-American to tell you the truth. I posted in the Neighborhood News and that's where he came. I seen your ad in the Neighborhood News and I thought I'd buy a Polish boy. I thank him for that. I don't know how this got misconstrued to being something that I possibly I really don't believe it was intentionally, you know, to support me because I was African-American. He wanted to eat something good. I got good food there. So I want to thank him, too. I really think he was genuine. He sat down. We had a very good conversation. I like him. I think Mayor Burke is an individual that really cares about Garfield. And I support that, but just with him just even mentioning that, it increased the volume of my business. And I thank him again for that because so many times we struggle out here. So I think something that was so positive, how it turned negative, that kind of hurt me.

But again, I'd like to thank all of the residents and everybody from Garfield Heights for just accepting us and just being supportive because we need it and especially Dudley, you've always been there from day one. OK, the previous Mayor, he came over to my spot. We actually allowed them to put a camera on one of the poles that was located on my property when I owned it over there. So I've always been involved with Garfield. I really like the way that you guys have supported us. And again, I really don't feel that Mayor Burke. I don't think his intent was. Well, with the letter being said the letter was I thought it was kind of political, actually. But again, I don't know that. But I'm hoping that we all understand we are proud of one race and that's the human race. And that's all I want to say.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Lane, I want to comment. Your French fries are better than McDonald's.

MR. LANE: Thank you, Sir.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Anybody else wishing to speak?

CLMN BLAKE: Mr. Chairman? Mark's iPhone has its hand raised.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Whoever you are, you got the floor. Please state your name and address for the record.

Mr. Sprouse. Hey, how you doing there? Hi, my name is Mark Sprouse. I'm at 10806 Grace Avenue. My concern is you know, I've been a resident of Garfield Heights for four years now. I've worked in Garfield Heights for a good six years. I ended up moving here because of where I work. By going through the community and you know, dealing with you know, the boundaries of my property I'm always picking up this trash. I mean, this town is I mean, I hate to say it guys, but it's dirty. It looks really dirty. And granted, I'm used to accommodations from Lakewood, Ohio, where I used to be, but I chose to move to Garfield Heights. I know we're apples and oranges here. You know, Lord knows, you know, our Clwn has tried, you know, with the businesses around here trying to get that cleaned up during trash pickup days, but it's just not this Ward 4, it's the whole community. I just, you know, I don't see any improvement in this. I actually sent Mayor Burke an email this evening, you know it was so nice out.

I'm going to go out and clean up my property. Now, mind you, I don't do this just every once in a while. I do this whenever I have nice weather. I was so disgusted by the amount of things. I mean, just not restaurant trash. I mean, I've had feminine hygiene products. I've had, you know, prophylactics, needles, busted beer bottles or busted whiskey bottles; I found open containers of alcohol. I don't know how that's going on, you know, how people are able to, you know, walk around with open containers with alcohol and toss them all through my ivy beds. But I did send, you know, a picture over and it was ridiculous. I just cleaned up in January. It's just it's all the time. And you know, I live on the corner of Grace and Turney. And Lord knows when you're on Turney, it's like life or death sometimes, you know, trying to clean something up out there because of the speed of traffic that's going so fast. But I just you

know, what's going on with this? Is this ever something that's going to be resolved? I mean, even on my way to work, you know, going down McCracken and, you know, they're on Broadway underneath the underpass? You know, it's just littered with trash all the time. And that's my concern, you know, with the amount of taxes we pay for this community, it shouldn't look like this.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mayor, do you want to address that, or you want me to?

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: No, I can address it. We are actually in the process with working with Court Community Service to go out and handle some of those. Last year, it was tough with COVID, they didn't go out. I have also addressed it with some businesses around town by having somebody within our organization such as the building inspector, go out and address it with the businesses. However, I agree with you, there's a lot of trash I have it, you know, floating around by my place to right off the expressway and I-480 there. You know, you just really wish people would be considerate enough to pick up and not throw their trash out. And I'm not sure in this day and age it would kill everyone. But I do think that your email this evening, I will have somebody go out at that area, look at it and try to assess it.

MR. SPROUSE: Well, Mayor, I mean, I've already picked it up. I mean, we've seen the amount of garbage in it, one of the photos I sent, and it's just not from I'm saying here, just from the litter that's being you know, from people on trash day. I mean, every Monday night, I take out my trash container. And I know every Tuesday night when I bring in that hopper; I got to pick up trash that was probably spilled out of trash containers and the collections people don't pick it up. You know, I mean, I shouldn't be picking up, you know, pierogi boxes, and, you know, bottles of, you know, food items out of my yard and off the curb. I mean, it's.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: I agree 100% with you, I mean, but you know, we can't, the only way we can stop somebody is if we see them litter, and when they litter, they're going to get a ticket. That's the only way we can stop them. You wake up in the morning, and it's there. I don't know what else we can do to prevent that from happening. Certainly, the city doesn't have it in the budget to hire people to go out and clean up. We can ask our service guys to do it. But they're gearing up for the grass-cutting season. There's a lot to be done here. And we will try to get it addressed as much as we can. The only thing I can ask from residents and from the people passing through our community is that they help keep this place a lot cleaner place.

MR. SPROUSE: And yeah, because the civic pride is definitely not there. I mean, you know, we've got several businesses here that have you know, filthy sidewalks you can't get through, you know, there's trash in their lots. I mean, it's just it's an ongoing thing.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: We have heard you and I got your emails. I did see them come through. The only reason why I didn't click on them is because I am on this meeting and I didn't want to drop off of this meeting to go look at them, but I can assure you I will get to you tomorrow or Wednesday. Like I said we will get it squared away.

MR. SPROUSE: I like I try to keep my property very nice and add a nice incentive to this community. And like I said, I'm going to do my best where I can, and definitely, you know, if they do have some committees on something like that, you know, I definitely would work with my Clwn here. Be more than happy to help address this issue. Absolutely. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I appreciate your remark. Thank you. Jason?

CLMN BLAKE: Mr. Chairman, Victor Torres has his hand raised.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Torres, you have the floor, state your name and address. I see your hand up, Kevin McHenry, is it? I see your hand up. OK. Mr. Torres, you had the floor next.

Mr. Torres. Thank you for the opportunity to speak this evening. First off, Victor Torres, 12900 Woodward Boulevard. And there's just been some troubling and unneeded negative attention that seems to be you know, coming about, you know, within our community, local government and stuff like that. First off, we have a Councilwoman in Ward 4 that is currently under investigation from the Federal Government for bribery from the 2020 election. Please note that this is an extremely serious charge and which sheds Garfield Heights in a negative light and gives the perception that the entire city government is corrupt.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Torres? Can you substantiate these claims?

MR. TORRES: It is from the Epoch Times article and that the fact that the Ohio State Attorney General David Yost's department is in the middle of the investigation.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: So, this is fact that you can prove? It's not just a newspaper article?

MR. TORRES: It's a newspaper article and David Yost's office is investigating.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: What do you mean that you could prove that David Yost is investigating this person?

MR. TORRES: That is that is from the article that I can provide to you if need be.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Because we don't want to open Ms. Davis up to slander or anything. I mean, if this is true?

MR. TORRES: I'm not trying to slander. But we can also move on. Secondly, we also have that same Councilwoman from Ward 4, that is in possible violation of Section 9 of the City Charter --Qualifications of Members of the Council. Please know for the sake of time management that the members of Council cannot hold any other public office or public employment except if you're the Notary Public, member of the State Militia, or in the Reserve Corps of the United States. This Charter was put into place and follows the Ohio Constitution to prevent corruption and collusion that might be committed by a public official, and also holding public employment. For possible employment through the city of Cleveland or any subsidiary of the city of Cleveland is in direct violation of the City Charter. May I suggest there should be some sort of investigation for the matter, and that should be handled in the matter of utmost importance for the integrity of the city's rules and regulations.

Thirdly, I would like to bring to light the lack of integrity and blatant passive aggression toward her peers. And using her race as intimidation against members of the community and our local government. Her behavior will shed unwanted negative attention for the city, and will cause businesses from coming to our city and remain in our city. I am a person of color as there are many persons of color that do live in our city, and in all shades of the spectrum. She has repeatedly used this race card to leverage decisions instead of helping people of all races to improve our city. Lately, this Councilwoman has also aligned herself with the candidate for Council Ward 6 Renae Bolton into using the same race baiting tactics and racial intimidation within her Ward. She was extremely displeased with the appointment of Frank Tagliarini to become Ward 6 Councilman. We all need to understand that the decision was strictly based on experience, conduct of character, and who was the best suited to operate the office position? Renae has repeatedly used race as a factor in her appointment. I have challenged her to provide publicly what qualification she had that would make her a better candidate for the appointment of that position.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Torres, can I stop you for one minute? Mr. Vaughn, what's our time on that?

CLMN VAUGHN: It's about two and a half minutes.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: He has two and a half minutes left. Okay. You have two and a half minutes. Mr. Torres.

MR. TORRES: I've got about 45 seconds left and that's it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. Thank you, Sir.

MR. TORRES: She has also insinuated recently that the Mayor was only selecting people of color for particular committees, rather than the qualifications of their character. She seems to continue to contradict and to create chaos and negativity within the local government. We as citizens cannot let this happen and Ms. Bolton is not fit for office or running for office.

I'll close by Martin Luther King's quote, "I have a dream that my four little children will one day live in a nation and that will not be judged by the color of their skin, but the conduct of their character". Now, as a minority, I have been pretty successful in my profession by not using my skin color or nationality to intimidate someone into a decision, but have used my conduct, my character and my hard work to be able to be the best candidate for that job. Now, if Ms. Bolton would take MLK's advice and stop using her racial intimidation, and Ms. Davis, resign from her position, Garfield Heights would be on a clear road back for progress and prosperity. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you. And Mr. Torres, before you hang up, or blackout, you do realize that this is being recorded? And Clwn Davis has access to this. And if anything comes of this, it's a matter of record.

MR. TORRES: OK, I mean, like I said, we have articles.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. So long as you can prove what you say because you're on the line too.

MR. TORRES: Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Shayla, do you have anything you want to say?

CLWN DAVIS: Mr. Chairman, I guess my response is that it seems like a blatant racial attack against me. Yes, I am a Black woman and I proudly announced that I'm a Black woman and clearly the community can see that. However, after being elected in 2019, I have served every resident not only in Ward 4, but this entire community. I've never dealt with you before. I've never actually had a conversation with you. You've never picked up the phone and called me. And if you're on Woodward, you would be in Ward 7, I believe. So you've never reached out to me for any support. Perhaps you're in Ward 6. It's not my Ward. So I'm not 100% correct. But the things which you said are blatant slander. So those things will be dealt with at a later time. But I do appreciate your comments and your ability to speak before the entire community about how you feel about a person that you've never personally met before. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Jason.

CLMN BLAKE: Mr. Chairman, Renae Bolton has her hand up.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Jason. Don't forget Mr. Kevin McHenry has had his hand up too and I think he took it down. Ms. Bolton, you have the floor. Please state your name and address.

Ms. Bolton. Good evening, everyone. My name is Renae Bolton. My address is 5749 Turney Road. I have a couple of things that I wanted to address. First of all, regarding the community service page on the Website, I understand that the Website is under construction. However, this is a very easy fix to just remove that link to that page that is so offensive until the whole Website can be read on the way that you want it to be done. I don't understand why this is such a big issue. It seems like a minor fix to me.

Additionally, it was never addressed that I placed a formal records request for all of the committees so that, like Mr. Kelley, more people could get involved in what's going on in our community. So Mr. Kelley, I apologize if you feel like I was insinuating that you were only handpicked because you were a person of color. What I am asking is for everyone to have an opportunity to be on these committees. I don't see what's wrong with that.

And to say, Mr. Burke, go search the Charter. I have looked at the Charter and I do see the committees that are there. But that's not telling me which committees have vacant seats. I made a formal written records request over two weeks ago and still I have not heard anything. You sit in this meeting tonight and you tell us you knew in December, which seats were open, which ones you were going to fill, but I've been waiting for weeks to get the same information and have not been provided. I don't understand why.

I'm finally I also want to address why the residents were not made aware of the seats that were open, just as Mr. Kelley was able to call your office, Mr. Burke, and ask you about these seats. As Ms. Leonard mentioned, many people have already asked about several seats and are not being told. I felt like this is a way to keep perpetuating the appointment of hand picking people that you want in specific positions. That is what our issue is. It's not Mr. Kelley, the best person for this position, I don't even know him. So I'm not attacking his character, or anything like that. But his ability to do this job, he may be the best person for this position. However, we're talking about fairness for all residents of the community.

And regarding Mr. Torres, you know, never mind. I'm not even going to waste my time addressing that. But that's all I have. Thank you so much.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Ms. Bolton.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Mr. President, if I could just add something here.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mayor, you have the floor.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: I'm sorry, you feel that way and certainly, I will check into why you haven't got the public records request that you asked for. As far as me knowing December 31^{st} how many people I needed to appoint. What I said was those terms turned down on December 31, 2020. That Mayor Collova felt that necessary to see that I appoint the people. And since being sworn into office on February 1^{st} , to be fair, I've had a month and one week to address these. And if I may, I would love to ask for a little bit more time in order to do so. Especially if I'm trying my best and see to it, that it is a process that's fair for everyone.

As far as the link on the Court Community Service, I will ask them to take that link down on your behalf. However, you know, we do have to have community service in our city. It's something that we signed a program with. And it's something that benefits our city. So I certainly hope that taking that down doesn't impede any process we may have with the Court Community Service. But I want you to know, I hear what you're saying and I will do my best to try to address it.

MS. BOLTON: Can I just clarify one thing here? I just want to say, Mr. Burke, I didn't ask you, personally, for this information. I went through the proper channels and I requested the information from the proper department, which is not your responsibility. It's the responsibility of the city to respond to the

citizen. So I am not on this call saying Matt Burke didn't respond to my email and send me the information that I needed. What I'm saying is that the city has to be more responsive to the residents in the city, when we make formal record requests for information that is supposed to be available to the public. And there is no reason why we should not have access to that information. You're the one who brought up, you know, when I got into office, I did this and I do that and I get it, you're in a new job, I get it. But each person who's responsible for their individual department should also be doing their jobs.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: And I agree with that Ms. Bolton. Ultimately it does come to my desk and it does become my responsibility. I will get with Tim Riley and everyone.

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: May I comment on this?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Riley, go ahead.

LAW DIRECTOR RILEY: I have been working on your request. I actually have the financial information you requested ready to go. And I was waiting to see what was going to happen with some of these positions because I figured you'd want an updated list. However, I will send you all the information tomorrow. It will not be complete, but I will give it to you. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Mr. Riley. Thank you Mayor. Thank you, Renae. Jason, I would like to have Mr. Kevin McHenry be next. He's been waiting so patiently. Mr. McHenry, you have the floor. The floor is yours. Please state your name and address.

Mr. Kevin McHenry, my wife Tomika McHenry, 12108 Henia Circle. That is in the city of Garfield Heights. We just thought we'd have a brief announcement if you will. We appreciate being in this meeting. We were invited by Clmn Dudley because we wanted to share something that could be very beneficial and impactful to the Garfield Heights community. I'm the Minister of Garfield Heights Church of Christ. We have had the opportunity, I and my First Lady here, we've had the opportunity to serve the city in the Thanksgiving Giveaway, in which we gave away approximately about 80 to 90 bags to Garfield Heights citizens.

Well, this coming Saturday we are partnering with Walgreens and we are offering the vaccination shots. So we want the Garfield Heights citizens to be the first to know. We want to make sure that they have access to these vaccinations that have been kind of difficult to obtain. They're scarce and where people can go and get them at this coming Saturday. My wife is going to share a word with us as we only got five minutes jointly. She's the expert in all of this. She has been dealing with University Hospitals. She's Director of Nursing at University Hospitals, so she has some information that she wants to share with the community as well.

Mrs. McHenry. We are just pleased to announce that the Garfield Heights Church of Christ has collaborated.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Would you speak a little bit louder, please?

MRS. McHENRY: Thank you for allowing us your time here. We are pleased to announce that the Garfield Heights Church of Christ has collaborated with Walgreens to combat our fight against COVID-19. As you all know, many people have lost the battle to COVID-19. We're in hopes that the vaccination, which it has already been proven to decrease the numbers of people who are becoming positive for COVID-19. What Walgreens is going to do for us is to make the vaccination available to the community, making it accessible to all of our residents at Garfield Heights and the inner cities of Cleveland, especially to our Seniors who have not been able to get out of their homes and have access to the vaccination and to our minorities who have not been well represented with receiving the vaccination.

People can get registered for this vaccination by going to our Website at garfieldhtscoc.com. It's a very simple registration, probably three clicks. This would allow for them to get the vaccination. Once they register, they just show up at our address to get their vaccination. Right now, we're temporarily at 3304 East 126th Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44120, and that's off of Kinsman. We're hoping that you all can spread this word throughout our community so that our residents can get vaccinated. It's been very difficult. Even at University Hospitals, we've been limited with the amount of vaccinations that we are able to disperse. But Walgreens has made it very accessible, and they're willing to vaccinate as many people as we can get to register and they must register by Wednesday, this Wednesday at 8:00 a.m.

MR. McHENRY: There won't be any walk-ins. So you really have to register. We're excited about working with the Garfield Heights community. We love Garfield Heights. I'm a Bedford Heights alumni. I'm glad to be a citizen of Garfield Heights. I've been working with Clmn Dudley, I had the opportunity to meet with the previous Mayor on a few occasions, Chief Kaye and Sergeant. I've met with them also in different discussions in different areas. So we're just excited about being residents of Garfield and being able to do something for the Garfield Heights community.

Again, go to our Website. Clmn Dudley has my information. You can call us personally, but to register and it gives you all the qualifications on the Website, 60 years of age, but just as we were talking about earlier, the Fire Department and the Police Department, you're also. You don't have to be 60 years of age. We're going to make sure you get in. Sixteen years of age if you're a healthcare worker, a school worker.

MRS. McHENRY: Or funeral service worker. For all of our funeral homes, anybody who works in a funeral home as long as they're 15 years of age, they can come and get vaccinated. Our law enforcement and correction officers can come and get vaccinated and any healthcare worker who was not able to get their vaccination in round one can come and get vaccinated. You do not have to have insurance. If you don't have insurance, that's OK. You will still get vaccinated.

MR. McHENRY: Our Mayor was talking about reaching out to the Seniors. Excellent opportunity to get these Seniors out--those that want to be vaccinated against. Again, no forcing people not comfortable or not secure in the idea, but anybody that wants it, the doors open to Garfield heights communities. So we'll be all about again, my name is Minister Kevin McHenry. This is First Lady Tomika and we're just glad to have the opportunity to speak with all you great persons of Council, Chairman, Mayor, Chief, Clmn Dudley, all the rest, all the newly appointees.

We're grateful and congratulations to all those who are taking the seat. Ashley, we've been working very closely with Ashley Thomas as well and we thank her for her support and her contributions as well.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. McHenry, you're running out of time.

MR. McHENRY: Thank you so much for your time. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mrs. McHenry, I have a question. Will you know what type of vaccine you will be handing out?

MRS. McHENRY: Yes, is going to be the Moderna. And we're going to get them registered for their second vaccination at the day that they come and get their first one. Yes, it would be the Moderna vaccination.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you very much. We appreciate that information. Keep up the good work.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Mr. President.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Yes.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: This is Mayor Burke. Mr. and Mrs. McHenry, I applaud you for this. I commend you for it. My assistant has been trying to get in contact with the Public Health Department just to offer our Civic Center as a building that they could utilize for the vaccines. I certainly will give you a call tomorrow. I have your information for the Community Relations Committee, but I want to reach out tomorrow because I do have a call with Seniors on Wednesday and I'd love to pass this information on. I will reach out to you tomorrow. Thank you, so much.

MR. McHENRY: OK. Thank you.

CLMN BLAKE: Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Yes, Mr. Blake.

CLMN BLAKE: Gisele Gainer had her hand up for a very long time. Do you want to give her the opportunity? And then after her I'd like Dr. Tenisha Mack has her hand raised up.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Gisele, please. You have the floor, state your name and address, please.

Ms. Gainer. Hi. It's Gisele Gainer and my address is 4957 East 81st Street, here in Garfield. I am a resident. My concern was already addressed and so I actually took my hand down. It, too, was about the committees but I think that we've already addressed it. The transparency is coming. So I'm sure that that's appreciated by others that are interested in the community because, like Mr. Kelley, I was proactive and seeking out how I could help. And we've come to a resolution, but there wasn't a lot of information. So I understand where Mr. Kelley is coming from as far as being proactive. But I also understand where I think it was Melissia was coming from with the letter. So I just wanted to share that piece. But I think everybody can look forward to the transparency to come. That was one piece.

And then the second piece, really quickly, is I just wanted to get clarity. As a resident, I've been calling in here a little over a month now to the Council meetings. But I want to understand the clarity of what letters are to be read and which ones aren't. Because just being new to the process, I call in to understand what's going on in the community, because it's important to me. But you know, I'm just trying to get some clarity there. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: In my opinion, this is my opinion, the letters that I would like to hear are something that's going to be, you've talked to a Council representative and your writing this in reference to a problem. Now, when you address the Councilperson, he or she should be directing you to the committee. And that letter should go to an action that should be taken there. It's nice to have it read on the Council floor. But again, then we read it again, at the committee meetings. These Zoom meetings are all publicized, like I said, we are touching more people with these Zoom meetings.

My dissatisfaction tonight was that I voted No on it because we're going to be discussing this next week and we're going to read the letter again. And it's going to be open to the people. We would have saved that time for the other two letters. And the other two letters had merit in my book, but all three, I feel we should have waited till next week to read that letter. But that's my opinion. And I went with the vote of Council. They said three and I respect that. I mean, I am not a dictator, believe me.

MS. GAINER: So let me just clarify because I think that was a valid question and it was in no way meant to be an attack.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I didn't take it as that.

MS. GAINER: OK. Good, good. But I just wanted to know, because I know, last week, we had some, I think it was one or two letters written. But you know, when you said, don't read any of the three, I did take that a little bit offensive as a resident, because again, this is how, you know, I get my information. Right now I know the Website is down. Not bashing Garfield--I know you all are working on that and there's a lot of moving pieces and parts, but you know, I'm now able to be more engaged in the community. And this is how I get my information. So I just, you know, wanted to understand. So I think I'm pretty clear on it. So if somebody writes a letter, as long as it's not on the future set meeting, it can be read at this Council meeting, correct?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: That is exactly right. Thank you very much for understanding that. And thank you. I'm used to criticisms. I've been married 50 years, so I'm used to criticism. So thank you.

MS. GAINER: No problem.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Dr. Tenisha Mack is next, Jason?

CLMN BLAKE: Correct.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Dr. Tenisha Mack, you have the floor.

Dr. Mack. Hello, everyone. I just wanted to make a couple comments regarding some of the things that were said. I agree with Mark when he talked about how the city looked. Everywhere you go, there is a lot of trash everywhere. I'm constantly on my street picking up trash. I do believe that we should utilize the diversion program to help withal of that and, you know, do the process to get this tooken care of. I know that, you know, a lot of people don't want to pick up trash or things of that nature, but if we want to have the city look better we have to come together as a whole to actually start doing these things.

And I do believe, like what Matt Burke was saying, that we should definitely utilize the diversion program to actually pick up the trash around the community.

I do agree with Melissia, and I understand that, you know, things have been done at the Mayor's discretion. And I just do believe that it should be a better process. I do agree that I am glad that you are working with this and trying to take things in a different direction.

Also when it comes to accountability, I've noticed this, I've been around for a while in politics and accountability is something that I've seen is lacking in our City Council--our overall city. A lot of people don't take accountability and I'm not one to talk because I've done things in my past. But I took accountability for everything that I've done. I expect our leaders in our community to take accountability for the things that they have done too. So that's just my whole spiel on everything that has been going on over this last two hours on this call. It's a lot of people taking no responsibility and I just see a lot of lack of accountability. It's time for people to start taking accountability for the things and the roles that they play in Garfield. Thank you.

CLERK: Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Yes, Barbara.

CLERK: May we have Dr. Mack's address?

DR. MACK: 5205 East 119th Street.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you.

CLERK: Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: I just want to make one small comment on that, Dr. Mack. One of the worst days that we have throughout the city is trash day. And our Service Department, if we complain to them, they go out and they make sure that the truck didn't dump all this trash on the road. But the other problem we have is people stop for a red light and put the McDonald's bag out. They drive by the front of your house throw the can at your lawn because they know you're going to pick it up. When nobody goes and cleans and polices (I say polices because that's what we use in the service) polices in front of their house on garbage day. The trashcan's out there already. Pick it up, put it in the trash can.

I agree with you. We have that problem in the city. But we have to have accountability from the residents too. I know it's our job to set this here forward and get it in motion, but the residents have to take a little bit of pride. The people that blow grass in the street. Our Service Department has to go clean the sewers. The people that blow the leaves in the sewer. Our Service Department has to take care of it. That tree falls down. They leave it on the street. Our Service Department has to take care of it. Where's the accountability from the citizens? I agree with you. I'm bringing it up right now to Dr. Mack, because we have a great following right here. We have 54 people still listening. We never had it at the Council meetings and this is great. So I'm just agreeing with you. I just want to get that message out there. Clean up in front of your house. If everybody cleaned up in front of their house or their business this place would look really good. And with that I rest. Mr. Blake, is there anybody else?

CLMN BLAKE: I am not seeing anyone at this moment. Actually, Mark Sikon, yes.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Mr. Sikon. You have the floor.

SERVICE DIRECTOR SIKON: I just want to address Ms. Tenisha Mack. I do agree with them that there have been plenty of issues with the garbage. We posted some snapshots coming from Court Community of the amount of trash they do pickup and what they're doing daily. I have instructed my Service Department to take the street sweeper out almost every day that we can. I do believe that trash is a huge problem. Unfortunately, it's twofold. Obviously, there's people that must be moving in and out. I'm sure you will be working on this. It's a priority and we will take care of it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Mark. I appreciate that. Mr. Blake, do I have anybody else?

CLMN BLAKE: I'm not seeing anyone.

MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS:

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: If there's no one else, we will go to Council reports. We'll be starting with Mr. Chuck Donahue.

CLMN DONAHUE: I was shocked being first. I really don't have a lot. I appreciate all the input from the letters and I personally will try to do better. My phone number's out there, if you have any questions for me, I will truly try to answer them.

Other than that, I want to again congratulate Mr. Kelley.

The special Council meeting this Wednesday. I believe it's going to be at 6:30 p.m.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thursday.

CLMN DONAHUE: Thursday, it was changed?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: It's the 18th.

CLMN DONAHUE: No, I'm talking about the special Council meeting, not the Legislative Committee Meeting. The one called by the Mayor.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: It's been cancelled

CLMN DONAHUE: OK. It's been cancelled and is going to be rescheduled? My apologies. Then the only other thing I have to say is, don't forget St. Patrick's Day, next Wednesday, the 17th. It's the day everybody can be Irish if they would like to.

With that, everybody have a good safe life.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Chuck. OK. I'll be next; I'll keep it short and brief. Again, I'm going to reiterate the fact that these Zoom calls are opening up more and more. In the past, we didn't have this communication channel. We didn't have the transparency that we are working for. I commend our Mayor; he is working towards this, plus handling all the business of the city and working with the IT Department to get all this stuff done. I have no problem with that. I also want to say that the way you say "the good old boy network" in the past. Well, the good old boy network, we had three people at the Council meeting. We picked people that we knew that were interested in this, because we didn't have a venue to put this out other than the Neighborhood News and most people didn't read the Neighborhood News years ago, maybe even a year ago. They're starting to pick up on this paper. But we were picking people that we knew like, like Mr. Tagliarini, in construction work, his own business, took care of finances ran the books for the business. He has experience. I mean, I know a lot of people have other experiences. But this is what we build on. And we build on the experience and knowledge that we have of the people.

Now we have this, this Zoom meeting, we could touch everybody in the city. Everybody doesn't have a computer or an iPhone, but we can get out to everybody in the city. We have the avenue now, people, please use it. I mean, I probably could look at this screen down here and see these 53 people that were 62 an hour ago. And there'll be the same 62 people next week. But that's good. It's 62 people that are getting the message out and this is good. This is great technology. Let's use it for what it's worth. Let's not use it as a hammer. Let's use it as a handshake.

And I would like to congratulate Reverend Lucas on his 80th birthday. It's an accomplishment. I'm hoping to make 75 in a couple of years.

Happy St. Patrick's Day to everybody, even the gentleman in the green jacket and tie.

Thank you, Mrs. McHenry, for that great information. That is very good for our area, especially for our Seniors. Thank you so very much.

And with that, I will relinquish the floor to my learned colleague, Clwn Davis.

CLWN DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank everyone for sitting through this meeting. It was kind of lengthy tonight. I really don't have much outside of we were trying to put the work session meeting on this Wednesday; however, I have an appointment. So we're looking to reschedule. Mayor Burke, if you want to do that on Thursday, it is perfectly fine with me. I just could not cancel what I had already previously committed to. That's the only thing. So that's fine with me because you can let me know.

Thank you to the McHenry's. That is a beautiful thing. I do have some residents who have reached out to me (some Seniors) in the last few days about getting the vaccination and so I will definitely be reaching out to you guys.

Information that I found out on Friday when I spoke to our State Representative Stephanie Howes, that on March 17th, the Wolstein Center will be offering 6,000 COVID vaccination testing a day for eight weeks. They're going to be open for 12 hours. You can sign up online, you can call the number or you can just go in as a walk-in. So the McHenry's offer is in addition to that. They have not opened up people registering for that at this moment, but it is posted in the Ward 4 community paper and as soon as I know once that the registration opens up, I will send it out in my email blast.

That is really all that I have. Everyone be safe and let's do something better to edify ourselves and our community because if we truly believe in Garfield Heights, we should have a clear understanding that it takes all of us to represent this community well and support one another for doing this right. The other things are just negativity and they continue to keep us distracted and we're not moving forward. Have a good night.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you Councilwoman. Next we will move on to Mr. Frank Tagliarini.

CLMN TAGLIARINI: Thank you. I'd like to start out by thanking all the citizens and the Council members that have reached out to me in congratulations my appointment to City Council. In my first week I found many different people—concerns--a better word. I did find that there's basically just a handful of small components that everybody has the same perspective of. I think if we come together as a community, we can handle these. I have a lot of faith in the Council and the city to take care of these problems in the future—the garbage collection on the street, things of that sort.

I'd like to close by asking everybody to have a very safe, St. Patrick's Day, drink what you'd like, but don't drive. Please don't drive if you're drinking. We don't need anything like that.

With that, you have my thoughts.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you, Sir. Mr. Blake, the floor is yours.

CLMN BLAKE: Thank you, Mr. President. First, I'd like to start by thanking Clmn Dudley for his Black History Program. As in years past, he does an outstanding job with that. I just can't say enough good things about that.

I want to congratulate Mr. Dudley for being voted Council President Pro Tem this evening. I think it is overdue. Clmn Dudley and I have a lot more conversations than people know, some of them are business, some of them are not. I always appreciate his camaraderie when we are able to discuss things.

Again, I'd like to congratulate Mr. Kelley on his appointment to the Recreation Committee. As a Recreation Chairman, I look forward to working with you in the future. You and Mr. Birk, in the recreation department.

In regards to the letters that were read here this evening. A lot of the points have been discussed in terms of committee appointments and things like that. One of the points that I want to address and I may not be saying it exactly the way it was in the letter, so I apologize. But you know, there was a comment about city leadership has every intention of shutting down voices of the residents. I just want residents to know if you feel that is happening, you can reach out to me. My number is (216) 338-7883. My email at the city Website, you can send me a message.

One of the things I do know is this Council is not perfect. We all know it, we can do things better. But we have made every intention of trying to communicate and listen to the residents and things like that. And, you know that in years past may not--the level of communication doesn't compare. I mean, we are doing our best to listen and communicate with the residents. In doing better, you know, we are in a transition period. You know, Mayor Burke had said he's roughly been in office five weeks. That means Clmn Nenadovich; he's only been Council President roughly five weeks. You know, previously, I had sent an email to the Council to just, you know, express that we need to operate efficiently. I think we're on the right track. I know that with Clmn Dudley as Council President Pro Tem and Clmn Nenadovich, you know, if we all work together, we'll get there, you know.

We have made some mistakes, you know, with the interview process, it wasn't very smooth, but towards the end of it, I think we pulled it together and we were able to conduct the interviews in a professional way.

Just to end up with a few things. On March 16th at 6:00 p.m. we'll have a Memorial Day Parade meeting. I will send the link out over social media. If anybody wants to participate, you're more than welcome. Please reach out to me.

March 24th, I will be holding a Community Awareness Meeting with Clmn Tagliarini. That will be again, March 24th, at 6:30 p.m. We will have someone from the Garfield Heights Historical Society speak and tell us about their organization.

My newsletters for Ward 5 went out the first week of February. I am hoping they were received. If anybody needs one, or would like one, please reach out to me and I can get one to you if you did not get one. With that, that's my report for tonight.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: Thank you very much, Mr. Blake. Mr. Vaughn, the floor is yours, Sir.

CLMN VAUGHN: Mr. Chairman. Michael Dudley, congratulations on your position as Pro Tem, I think you're going to do an excellent job and if you need help, please feel free to call me. I'll be more than glad to assist. Mike, you've been a friend since the day I got seated on Council. You've helped me in many situations and I've always been appreciative of that.

Mr. Tagliarini, welcome.

CLMN TAGLIARINI: Thank you.

CLMN VAUGHN: We're going to be having three hours and 15 minute meetings now. It's going to be your goal since you've been seated? We're in trouble. No. It's a pleasure to have you. Pleasure to have you. I look forward to working with you.

Mr. Kelley, I think you're going to be a great addition. For the record, I think you're going to start some innovative programs and I think you're the fresh blood that we need over there. I welcome you.

I want to real briefly say I welcome the letters, but most of all, I welcome you picking up the phone and calling me and talking to me. And if we can't talk over the phone, we can always get together and meet for coffee and talk. I'm open to listen to anybody. So please feel free to pick up the phone and call.

Now some good news. We have not had a Ward 7 Block Watch meeting since last February. Today, I had a conversation with Father Heron and we're looking at the fact of opening up the pavilion for those meetings starting in late April. I'll announce more as they come along. I want to get these meetings up and going again. I think it's important to the community. And I think it's a great way for us to outreach into the community. At my Block Watch meetings all residents are welcome. When we meet in the

pavilion, I'm going to be asking for people to do social distancing. I hope, in June, we'll be able to have our annual cookout. Let's see how this moves forward. But again, I'm looking to open that up the end of April outside in the pavilion.

I want to remind people this Sunday morning, at two o'clock, turn those clocks ahead. I hate the time change as much as many other people but it's something we have to do. So I don't want to hear that anybody was late for church on Sunday because of it. So let's get that taken care of. OK, folks?

Last but not least, everybody have an enjoyable St. Patrick's Day. I'll be thinking of all of you and I'll be praying for all of you when I attend Mass over at St. Colman's. Folks, St. Patrick's Day is a celebration for all of us in this country. So please, enjoy yourselves. Be careful. And if you imbibe too much, please Uber or have a close friend bring you home. That's all I have for tonight, Mr. Chairman.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. I don't think anybody else has anything to say, do they, Mr. Dudley? The floor is yours, Mr. Dudley.

CLMN DUDLEY: All right. First of all, I want to thank Clmn Vaughn for the nomination. Like you say, we go way back in our relationship. We always had a great relationship. We talk a lot and we always been able to call each other up if we have something we wanted to discuss, rather as on a professional rather as on a personal thing that we want to talk about for the community.

I appreciate all of you for the vote to Pro Tem coming up to the end of my term either way. I appreciate it. And I got to say, we do try to do the best we can and I think we do a great job. More people don't realize out of all the years I've been there and Tom has been behind me and then it was Clmn Mike Nenadovich. We have never had a turnover Council like this before. This is really unprecedented. We never had three members elected and another member move on and move up to be the Mayor. We lost four members of Council. So we can't expect the same performance that you got when you have like, at least maintaining five veterans at every time.

I want to welcome the new member of Council, Clmn Frank Tagliarini. Well, Frank, from Ward 6, I want to welcome him. And like I say, it is going to take a minute. I don't mean that we're not going to get the job done. You cannot learn how to be a Councilperson in a year. It is virtually impossible. I really came in I had been to meetings prior to being elected to office, I came to meetings, I watched the Council. I talked to the Council members. Most the time with Vince Liotta, he was a person I talked to a lot before I came in office. He was a great guy. But you can pick it up. And sometimes you can't expect somebody to do something in one year, with other people have been around for years. It's something you got to learn. It is a process. So sometimes when you don't get exactly what you may have got years ago, or you expecting change overnight, sometimes change don't happen overnight. I don't mean that nobody is not working to bring better change. I say what this group I got now as I would say only is a great group. It is a good group of members of Council I'm working with now, you know. Like I say, Jason said, he calls me sometime I call on him. We run across each other we meet and if I stopped where he lived, or he came in where I live and the communication is good.

And I said another thing to that. I remember when a Councilman was sick or not feeling good. I know, for me, everybody called me; they would ask me what I needed--something I could do. You know, and I appreciated that. So just because we had differences on the floor don't mean that when we off the floor, that's a different story. It's about business. And it's about personal. And it's tough to separate the two, but you have to learn to separate the two otherwise, you're never going to get nothing accomplished as a Council. It's absolutely impossible to bring it to the floor. You got to separate the two. Sometime our decision is not the decision you want. But we represent a lot of people--4,000 something people in a Ward--and not just one.

But what I do want to say as I get into this here, I want to mention something. The Mayor and I actually have a meeting, but the meetings were brought forward by Pastor Faulkner, myself, Pastor Snell. Now when we reached out to the Mayor, we told him about a company where a gentleman is actually flew in tonight, he's already here. We're going to be meeting tomorrow and with the Mayor. It's about giving a free COVID test to everybody in Garfield Heights. If you don't have insurance, you'll be tested; you won't have to leave the city to get a test. We will be discussing for the city to be tested as well as our safety officials. I got to take a conversation back to the schools so I'm not going to talk about that yet. And we also want the general public when we will get to locations, I got to reach out to my buddy Tom Vaughn. Now he don't know it yet, because he has a great location at St. Monica. But once again, Tom is real involved in the community. And so that's the conversation that is going to happen. But that way we can go in and take the test. It's like a 48 turnaround time. And we can know who's positive, who's not positive. But this ain't something that I do. This is something my keyword is "we". I can't get it done if Council people don't participate fully, and it's going to be hard to do it if the Mayor don't participate. Then like I say, with Pastor Faulkner and Snell it's going to get through. So we appreciate that. And that's the meeting and hopefully the meeting will be good tomorrow. I believe it is and I believe we'll move forward on this.

Second thing is, before I get into all the thank yous, etc., when we talk about diversity, you can't just bring diversity; we got to make sure everybody is willing to accept it. That's the key thing, that they absorb what has been said to them, and I'm going to make everything as brief as possible as I can tonight. OK. I mean, I could flip on around here. And I got to mark it off as I talk about it, people, so be a little patient there.

And also, like I say, one thing about the Black History Program, we have never, me and members of Council and the Mayor we have never made that political. That is something we have always stayed free of politics. And you know, every year I could count on something coming from members of Council, you know, no matter how we was having differences, when that time came around, them and they families always had something to give. My program is not supported by, you know, city money. It is private money and well, you know, members that gave me checks. They then gave gifts and everything and what do you need for the program? What can we give you? That's always been a key word. And so they have been very supportive on the Black History Program. And like I say, we celebrated our 16th year. But that's not something that Mike Dudley does--that's something that we do as a city.

So I'm crediting everybody for helping make sure that the program is a success every year and it has been. I'm going to get to the thank yous. But I really appreciate that you all and I want you all to know that, you know, and it just is touching to me, I really love this program. It means a lot that it goes. And I need to thank Pastor Johnson and Christian Kingdom Assembly because the school has been always more than welcoming and I thank the school board members and Mr. Saluka, and the rest of them over there. Mr. Hanke has always helped provide us a venue that we can hold this program and provide it to the city. This year, it wasn't that they didn't provide it. Because of COVID we had to use a smaller location and we had to permit less people.

But Council members showing up. They do show up for the program. In the case of former Mayor, he has never ever missed in like 16 years or so. This one he missed--15 years. Before he had never missed a program with us at a Black History Program since I've been starting—Vic Collova--has not missed one of them. And what I want to go down here, and it ain't about the order that I mention these individuals, you know, it's just that I was scrolling down on my paper and everything and making sure I don't leave nobody out. But I want to say one thing for the school board members. You know, Ms. Ashley Thomas, she done really filled in, since I don't have the same individuals that helped me with some of the administrative stuff. And some of the guys I have been working with are aging up on me including myself, but she has stepped in and I appreciate her. Ms. Ashley Thomas and also Ms. Nichelle Daniels.

But I want to get to my colleagues who has always been there for me as well. I want to thank Clmn Nenadovich and his wife, you know, Bernie. They have always come through. Every year they have had something for us on the program, the raffle. I can't say enough about Tom Vaughn and his Mrs. They always been supportive. Right to the last minute they right there. And Jason, he make sure he do home deliveries to my house. He shows up at the house. And I know Frank Tagliarini wasn't aware of this. He actually came to Council after the program, I believe, what already started. So I like to thank Jason and his wife as well. And I thank Clmn Donahue because he really found it and made sure he chased me down and made sure that I got it because I kept forgetting and I appreciate Clmn Donahue and his wife for making a contribution. The McDonald cards came in handy. People loved them. And also Mayor Burke, he came through and made a contribution as well and I appreciate it because that's what makes the program work.

And as I get down here, I did want to name the sponsors and I'll wrap this up here. I want to thank Mr. Hero's who's been doing it for years. Metro by T Mobile. Like I said about Lucas, Mr. Lucas, Jason Lucas and his family and also his dad and the rest of him and his wife and all them they have always been big contributors to the community. I'd like to thank Nancy and John House. Everybody knows them. They own the old McDonald's up on Turney Road and also the one that sits up there on Rockside. I want to thank Lorenzo Dog Training and all these multi local businesses up on Orchard Avenue building a new building and making that his headquarters for a training facility. We want to thank Sam Sylk and new restaurant up there but been here for a while but also grateful. We got to thank my buddy who showed up tonight and also for Wine Down Bistro and Lawrence and we call him Larry Lang for also being a supporter for many years. We don't miss nobody. We have the Open Pantry what sits in my Ward. We got Brown Report News has been a support of ours. And also PS Award which is located right in Garfield Heights. They made the awards for us and we got AMH. We got Munchies. God forgive me that I don't forget somebody. I'll never forgive me. And we also got to thank Weldon PC because Weldon helped me put it together and gave me the real support I needed to make sure that everybody could watch and you can watch it even now on YouTube.

And just like the Chairman said, this is a new era where you can watch us on Council. We never had that many people on Council. Well, I tell you, you put all the numbers together, we got more than 1,000 and something people who have watched the program this year. This is a new era. Like the Chairman said this is something we got to consider following into the future.

An organization that I started along with a friend of mine, Pastor Snell, called CFABC (Citizens for a Better Community) and stuff that we've been doing programs since 2005, and we used to do the Halloween for the kids to keep them off the streets in the center up there. And Tom Vaughn is aware when he came in office, because he's been a contributing factor even on that going back into the days. But we have done that. We have done the Black history and we would just set up a small community center and it grew. But once again, I point back that none of this could have been possible without you all. I mean, all of you all: businesses, colleagues, the residents in Garfield Heights, so if I missed anybody, forgive me.

And last thing I want to mention, I do want to clear this up. This is reference to a leak that we had at a home on Maplerow. I really got to clear this up because I think it was something that came up and gave a misconception of me as well as the city. This home had leaked for a while on Maplerow. When it was warm, it was OK. Some people are aware that I lost I said I because we're a family in my Ward. But we had a family that actually were a mother and daughter lost their lives perfectly walking inside of a crosswalk several years ago. As I saw this water leaking, it was OK when it was warm. But when the temperature dropped, it's freezing. People think you drop salt on ice and it melts. No, it takes the friction when it goes to freezing and other vehicles running on it to activate that salt to melt that ice. We had individuals who were walking from Maplerow past 126th and when they stepped into the crosswalk, the cars were coming up there because it was covered in ice from that home that was leaking, the cars was sliding. And somebody could have been hurt--possibly killed--vehicles could have collided. So I did pick

up the phone and I called the Service Department and said we had to check that out on that house. But you know, given the story, it looked like Clmn Dudley, whatever, somebody else just went out ahead and had the people's water shut. Let me tell you. I went to the house several times and left my card. I went to the house several times and knocked on the door. But it was maybe a month and a half, two months. It was warm when that water started coming out. But I am not going to risk the people's safety. And for months at a time once the freezing come up and not turn up. I had an obligation for the safety of the people in my community to say we got a leak. We have to do something about it at the house because I can't have an intersection. And I can't have nobody hurt. And I can't have two cars collide with each other. So what I done, I did my job. And I want to put that out there. If they needed my assistance when I dropped the card the family could have always reached out to me. They chose not to reach out to me. Chose not to call me. So for them to say hey, Clmn Dudley, you're the reason why my water was shut off? No, Clmn Dudley isn't. It ran for quite a while. I'm glad to God, I appreciate that the Senior has the problem fixed. But if I had to do it again and if I knew about it and they reached out to me, I could provide some assistance. But I am not going to put the safety of the people in jeopardy and overlook something that is a safety concern in our community.

So we got to realize that. Once again, I thank all of you all for your continuing support and after the Mayor and I meet tomorrow along with the other individuals and a gentleman and them coming out of California, I believe it is going to be a positive and I believe that citizens and Garfield Heights, the residents would not have to leave the city of Garfield Heights to get COVID testing. If you have no insurance, it makes no difference if your insurance or not going to pay it makes no difference if they're going to pay part of it, you don't have to worry about a deductible.

So after the meeting, God blessing, is about all of us. It's not about me. I want to say thank you and most of all, guys, I really appreciate you all nomination and your vote of confidence this night. And that's it. I know I've been long, Mr. Chairman, but God forgive me. PS Award. If I forgot anybody on this list, but I do thank the Brown Report, I think I covered them and the restaurants and everything. And John House. I want to make sure. And Munchies at East 131st. It's been a longtime supporter too. And with that, and that's a T Mobile by Diamond Corporation, also as well.

And with that, Mr. Chairman, I believe that sums it up. Thank you. Appreciate it.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: OK. Before we make the motion, Tom, I have a question for you, Mayor.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Yes.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: At the end of this meeting, me being the host. Is there anything I have to push or do I end the meeting because I don't want to lose all everything that was said. Do I just end the meeting and it saves it all. Automatically?

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: Yes. It should automatically save it to the cloud. Mr. Chairman, if I could, if I could just have the floor for a guick second, I'd like to say something.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: You have the floor.

MAYOR MATTHEW BURKE: You know, I'm just really disturbed by some of the comments that were made tonight, especially the attacking Clwn Davis. You know and I know she happens to be a candidate for Mayor, as is myself and a few others on this call. And I will say she does not deserve to be attacked the way she did. I know this is not my meeting. This is a meeting of Council of which I'm a guest at but I just wanted to make it clear that I do not condone, and I do not agree with the way she was attacked tonight. I certainly think anybody who gets involved in this city and works hard for the community should at least deserve the respect not being attacked, especially at a Council. And I just want to put that out there. Thank you.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: And that's why I said it's being recorded and Ms. Davis knows that. Mr. Vaughn, do you have something to say for me?

CLMN VAUGHN: I thought maybe we'd sing some songs or something.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: No, no, no, I can't hear you, Tom.

CLMN VAUGHN: I thought we'd sing a few songs and Matt could play his guitar or something. Mr. Chairman, at this time, can we adjourn this meeting? Please?

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: On the motion by Mr. Vaughn to adjourn this meeting? Barb, would you take the roll call and I do second it.

(No reply)

Maybe Barbara's muted?

I believe that I could take the roll. So please bear with me, people.

Barb's using her phone for the meeting.

So what I will do is I will record the time, and I will take a roll call.

Tom, on your motion and my seconding starting with Mr. Vaughn on the adjournment of the meeting, how do you vote?

AYES: Vaughn, Dudley, Donahue, Nenadovich, Davis, Blake, Tagliarini

That's 7 Yes votes.

PRESIDENT NENADOVICH: At 10:10 p.m. on 3/8/2021 the meeting of Council is adjourned. Thank you all very much.

APPROVED:	RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
Michael T. Nenadovich	Barbara Molin
President of Council	Clerk of Council